	Case 5:18-cv-03989 Document 1	Filed 07/02/18 Page 1 of 38
1 2 3 4 5 6	COTCHETT, PITRE & McCARTHY, LLF Joseph W. Cotchett (SBN 36324) Mark C. Molumphy (SBN 168009) San Francisco Airport Office Center 840 Malcolm Road, Suite 200 Burlingame, California 94010 Telephone: 650-697-6000 Facsimile: 650-697-0577 <i>jcotchett@cpmlegal.com</i> <i>mmolumphy@cpmlegal.com</i>	P KAPLAN FOX & KILSHEIMER LLP Laurence D. King (SBN 206243) 350 Sansome Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, California 94104 Telephone: 415-772-4700 Facsimile: 415-772-4707 <i>Iking@kaplanfox.com</i>
7	Plaintiffs' Counsel	
8	Additional Counsel on Signature Page	
9		
10		
11		
12	NORTHERN DISTR	S DISTRICT COURT NICT OF CALIFORNIA
13	SAN JOS	E DIVISION
14	ALEX RODRIGUEZ, et al.,	Case No.
15	Plaintiffs,	CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
1.0		
16	V.	
16 17	v. APPLE INC.,	
17	APPLE INC.,	
17 18	APPLE INC.,	
17 18 19 20 21	APPLE INC.,	
 17 18 19 20 21 22 	APPLE INC.,	
 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 	APPLE INC.,	
 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 	APPLE INC.,	
 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 	APPLE INC.,	
 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 	APPLE INC.,	
 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 	APPLE INC.,	

Case 5:18-cv-03989 Document 1 Filed 07/02/18 Page 2 of 38

1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page	
INTRODUCTION	
JURISDICTION AND VENUE	
INTRADISTRICT ASSIGNMENT	
PARTIES	
A. PLAINTIFFS	
B. DEFENDANT AND ITS RELEVANT CORPORATE STRUCTURE	
SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS	
CHOICE OF LAW	
CLASS ALLEGATIONS	
TOLLING OF APPLICABLE LIMITATIONS PERIODS	
CLAIMS FOR RELIEF	
COUNT 1	
VIOLATIONS OF THE COMPUTER FRAUD AND ABUSE ACT,	
COUNT 2 VIOLATIONS OF THE CONSUMER LEGAL REMEDIES ACT,	
COUNT 3	
VIOLATIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA UNFAIR COMPETITION LAW,	
COUNT 4	
VIOLATIONS OF CALIFORNIA'S FALSE AND MISLEADING ADVERTISING LAW,	
COUNT 5	
CALIFORNIA COMPUTER DATA ACCESS AND FRAUD ACT,	
COUNT 6 TRESPASS TO CHATTELS	
COUNT 7	
FRAUD	

	Case 5:18-cv-03989 Document 1 Filed 07/02/18 Page 3 of 38
1	COUNT 8
2	BREACH OF CONTRACT
3	COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING
4	
5	COUNT 10 MONEY HAD AND RECEIVED
6 7	COUNT 11 QUASI-CONTRACT / UNJUST ENRICHMENT
8	PRAYER FOR RELIEF
9	JURY DEMAND
10	JURI DEMAND
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	
	CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 3

Case 5:18-cv-03989 Document 1 Filed 07/02/18 Page 4 of 38

INTRODUCTION

1. Plaintiffs file this Class Action Complaint against Apple Inc. ("Apple," the "Company," or "Defendant") on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated who purchased, owned, used, or leased one or more of Apple's Devices¹ for fraudulent misrepresentations and omissions, and other unlawful and unfair business practices.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

This Court has federal question subject-matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
 § 1331, because Plaintiffs allege that Apple violated, among other things, the Computer Fraud and Abuse Act, 18 U.S.C. § 1030, *et seq.*

3. This Court has subject-matter jurisdiction pursuant to the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005, 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2), because this is a class action in which the matter in controversy exceeds the sum of \$5,000,000, and Apple is a citizen of a State different from that of at least one class member. This Court also has supplemental jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a) because all claims alleged herein form part of the same case or controversy.

4. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(a) through (d) because Apple's principal place of business is located in this District and substantial parts of the events or omissions giving rise to the claims occurred in the District. Venue is also proper in this Court because Apple is located here and the causes of action arose here.

INTRADISTRICT ASSIGNMENT

5. Assignment of the cases originally filed within this District is proper to the San Jose Division under Local Rule 3-2-(e), as a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to Plaintiffs' claims occurred in Santa Clara County, California.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

¹ As used herein, the term "Devices" are the following products designed and marketed by Apple for sale: the iPhone 5, iPhone 5s, iPhone 5c, iPhone SE, iPhone 6, iPhone 6s, iPhone 6 Plus, iPhone 6s
²⁷ Plus, iPhone 7, and iPhone 7 Plus, the Fourth Generation iPad, iPad Mini, iPad Air, iPad Mini 2, Update to Fourth Generation iPad, iPad Air 2, iPad Mini 3, iPad Mini 4, iPad Pro, 9.7-Inch iPad Pro, Fifth Generation iPad, iPad Pro 10.5-inch and 12.9 inch models, and Sixth Generation iPad.

		PARTIES
А.	Plain	tiffs
	6.	Plaintiff Alex Rodriguez is a citizen and resident of the State of Alaska and acquire
one o	r more	Devices in the State of Arizona.
	7.	Plaintiff Loren Haller is a citizen and resident of the State of Alaska and acquired
one o	r more	Devices.
	8.	Plaintiff Jonathan David is a citizen and resident of the State of Arkansas and
acqui	red one	or more Devices in the State of Arizona.
	9.	Plaintiff Daphne Bowles Rodriguez is a citizen and resident of the State of Arizon
and a	cquired	one or more Devices.
	10.	Plaintiff Laura Gail Diamond is a citizen and resident of the State of California an
acqui	red one	or more of the Devices.
	11.	Plaintiff Heidi Valle is a citizen and resident of the State of California and acquire
one o	r more	of the Devices.
	12.	Plaintiff Ida Villegas is a citizen and resident of the State of California and acquire
one o	r more	of the Devices.
	13.	Plaintiff Susan Rutan is a citizen and resident of the State of California and acquir
one o	r more	Devices in the State of Oregon.
	14.	Plaintiff Steven Connolly is a citizen and resident of the State of Idaho and acquire
one o	r more	Devices in the State of Colorado.
	15.	Plaintiff Bryan Schell is a United States citizen and resident of France and acquire
one o	r more	Devices in the State of Colorado.
	16.	Plaintiff Aisha Boyd is a citizen and resident of the State of Delaware and acquire
one o	r more	Devices.
	17.	Plaintiff Irwin Darack is a citizen and resident of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania and acquired one or more Devices in the State of Delaware.		

1 Plaintiff Brandi White is a citizen and resident of the District of Columbia and 18. 2 acquired one or more Devices. 3 19. Plaintiff Jason Ratner is a citizen and resident of the State of Georgia and acquired 4 one or more Devices. 5 20. Plaintiff Tamica Gordon is a citizen and resident of the State of Georgia and 6 acquired one or more Devices. 7 21. Plaintiff Eric Tanovan is a citizen and resident of the State of California and 8 acquired one or more Devices in the State of Hawaii and the State of Oregon. 9 22. Plaintiff Linda Sauer is a citizen and resident of the State of Idaho and acquired one 10 or more Devices. 11 23. Plaintiff Rifah Alexander is a citizen and resident of the State of Illinois and 12 acquired one or more Devices. 13 24. Plaintiff Andrew Yashchuk is a resident and citizen of the State of Texas and 14 purchased one or more Devices in the State of Illinois. 15 25. Plaintiff Alisha Boykin is a citizen and resident of the State of Indiana and acquired 16 one or more Devices. 17 Plaintiff Tammy Greenfield is a citizen and resident of the State of Iowa and 26. 18 acquired one or more Devices. 19 27. Plaintiff Natasha Bryant is a citizen and resident of the State of Kansas and acquired 20 one or more Devices. 21 28. Plaintiff John Farris is a citizen and resident of the State of Texas and acquired one 22 or more Devices in the State of Kansas. 23 Plaintiff Herman Praszkier is a citizen and resident of the Commonwealth of 29. 24 Kentucky and acquired one or more Devices. 25 30. Plaintiff Lawrence Pethick is a citizen and resident of the State of Michigan and 26 acquired one or more Devices in the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 27 28

Case 5:18-cv-03989 Document 1 Filed 07/02/18 Page 7 of 38

31.	Plaintiff Kenyotta Smith is a citizen and resident of the State of Louisiana and
acquired one	or more Devices.
32.	Plaintiff Judith Thompson is a citizen and resident of the State of Maine and
acquired one	or more Devices.
33.	Plaintiff Drew Victory is a citizen and resident of the State of Maine and acquired
one or more	Devices.
34.	Plaintiff Johnjulee Ray is a citizen and resident of the State of Maryland and
cquired one	or more Devices.
35.	Plaintiff Aja Johnson is a citizen and resident of the Commonwealth of
lassachuset	ts and acquired one or more Devices.
36.	Plaintiff Steven Henry is a citizen and resident of the State of Michigan and acquired
ne or more	Devices.
37.	Plaintiff Timothy Baldwin is a citizen and resident of the State of Michigan and
equired one	or more Devices.
38.	Plaintiff Kristin Hansen is a citizen and resident of the State of Minnesota and
cquired one	or more Devices.
39.	Plaintiff Mary Jackson is a citizen and resident of the State of Mississippi and
equired one	or more Devices.
40.	Plaintiff Alvin Davis is a citizen and resident of the State of Mississippi and acquired
one or more	Devices.
41.	Plaintiff Christopher Gautreaux is a citizen and resident of the State of Missouri and
acquired one	or more Devices.
42.	Plaintiff Charlie Bell Daily is a citizen and resident of the State of Missouri and
equired one	or more Devices.
43.	Plaintiff Michelle Martino is a citizen and resident of the State of Montana and
acquired one	or more Devices.

Case 5:18-cv-03989 Document 1 Filed 07/02/18 Page 8 of 38

1 Plaintiff Kevin Browne is a citizen and resident of the State of Nebraska and 44. 2 acquired one or more Devices. 3 45. Plaintiff Jill Klingman is a citizen and resident of the State of Nebraska and acquired 4 one or more Devices. 5 46. Plaintiff Angela Boykin is a citizen and resident of the State of Nevada and acquired 6 one or more Devices. 7 47. Plaintiff Barbara Moriello is a citizen and resident of the State of Nevada and 8 acquired one or more Devices. 9 48. Plaintiff Thomas Toth is a citizen and resident of the State of New Hampshire and 10 acquired one or more Devices. 11 49. Plaintiff Caren Schmidt is a citizen and resident of the State of New Jersey and 12 acquired one or more Devices. 13 50. Plaintiff Jacquelyn O'Neill is a citizen and resident of the State of New Jersey and 14 acquired one or more Devices. 15 51. Plaintiff Brandon Farmer is a citizen and resident of the State of New Mexico and 16 acquired one or more Devices. 17 52. Plaintiff Patrick DeFellippo is a citizen and resident of the State of New Mexico and 18 acquired one or more Devices. 19 Plaintiff Sherri Yelton is a citizen and resident of the State of North Carolina and 53. 20 acquired one or more Devices. 21 54. Plaintiff Brinley McGill is a citizen and resident of the State of North Carolina and 22 acquired one or more Devices. 23 55. Plaintiff Sarah Stone is a citizen and resident of the State of Oklahoma and acquired 24 one or more Devices. 25 Plaintiff Megan Mesloh is a citizen and resident of the State of Oregon and acquired 56. 26 one or more Devices. 27 28

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

1					
2	57.	Plaintiff Beckie Erwin is a citizen and resident of the Commonwealth of			
3	Pennsylvania and acquired one or more Devices.				
4	58.	Plaintiff Darlane Saracina is a citizen and resident of the Commonwealth of			
5	Pennsylvania and acquired one or more Devices.				
6	59.	Plaintiff Brian Macinanti is a citizen and resident of the State of Rhode Island and			
0 7	acquired one	or more Devices.			
8	60.	Plaintiff Stephen Heffner is a citizen and resident of the State of Rhode Island and			
0 9	acquired one	or more Devices.			
9 10	61.	Plaintiff Denise Bakke is a citizen and resident of the State of South Dakota and			
10	acquired one	or more Devices.			
11	62.	Plaintiff Jodi Johnson is a citizen and resident of the State of Tennessee and acquired			
12	one or more l	Devices.			
13 14	63.	Plaintiff Henry Becker is a citizen and resident of the State of Utah and acquired one			
14	or more Devi	ces.			
15	64.	Plaintiff Georgiana D'Alessandro is a citizen and resident of the State of Vermont			
10	and acquired	one or more Devices.			
17	65.	Plaintiff Aurelia Flores is a citizen and resident of the Commonwealth of Virginia			
10 19	and acquired	one or more Devices.			
20	66.	Plaintiff Kristopher Kingston is a citizen and resident of the State of Washington and			
20	acquired one	or more Devices.			
21	67.	Plaintiff Tonya Thompson is a citizen and resident of the State of West Virginia and			
22	acquired one or more Devices.				
23 24	68.	Plaintiff Kyle Herman is a citizen and resident of the State of Wisconsin and			
	acquired one or more Devices.				
25 26	69.	Plaintiff Quinn Lewis is a citizen and resident of the State of Wyoming and acquired			
26 27	one or more Devices.				
27 28					
28					
	CLASS ACT	TON COMPLAINT 9			

Case 5:18-cv-03989 Document 1 Filed 07/02/18 Page 10 of 38

70.	Plaintiff Shiriam Torres is a resident and citizen of Puerto Rico and acquired one or
more Device	
71.	Plaintiff Adam Shapiro is a resident and citizen of the United States Virgin Islands
and acquired	one or more Devices.
72.	Plaintiff Hanpeng Chen is a resident and citizen of Canada and acquired one or more
Devices.	
73.	Plaintiff Kaixuan Ni is a permanent resident of the United States residing in
California ar	d a citizen of the People's Republic of China and acquired one or more Devices.
74.	Plaintiff Juliana Caceres is a citizen and resident of Colombia and she purchased or
or more Dev	ices.
75.	Plaintiff Linda Sonna is a citizen of the United States and permanent resident of
Mexico and	acquired one or more Devices.
76.	Plaintiff Nakul Chandra is a citizen and resident of India and acquired one or more
Devices.	
77.	Plaintiff Arisa Wakabayashi is a citizen and resident of Japan, temporarily living ir
New York, a	nd acquired one or more Devices.
78.	Plaintiff Burim Daci is a citizen and resident of Norway and acquired one or more
Devices.	
79.	Plaintiff Pedro Espejo is a citizen and resident of the Peru and acquired one or mor
Devices.	
80.	Plaintiff Roman Dubianskii is a citizen and resident of Russia and acquired one or
more Device	
81.	Plaintiff Heekyung Jo is a citizen and resident of South Korea and acquired one or
more Device	
82.	Plaintiff Youngro Lee is a citizen and resident of South Korea and acquired one or
more Device	S.

83. Plaintiff Kushagra Sharma is a citizen and resident of the United Kingdom and acquired one or more Devices.

Defendant and Its Relevant Corporate Structure

84. Apple Inc. ("Apple"), is a corporation that was created under the laws of the State of California, and has its principal place of business in Cupertino, California. Apple is the world's largest information technology company by revenue and the world's third-largest mobile phone manufacturer. There are currently over one billion Apple products in active use worldwide.

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

85. After years of customer frustration and attrition, on December 20, 2017, Apple admitted to one of the largest consumer frauds in history, affecting hundreds of millions of mobile devices across the globe. Prompting the admission were reports of unexplained shutdowns of certain Devices surfacing more than two years earlier, with consumers complaining their Devices were suddenly shutting down even though the batteries were more than 30% charged. Complaints accelerated in the autumn of 2016 and were accompanied by reports of unexplained heating.

86. Despite the growing chorus of complaints, Apple remained silent until November 2016, when it finally admitted a problem, but limited its admission to a small serial range of iPhone 6s Devices manufactured in September and October 2015 because the batteries were exposed to "ambient air" during assembly. Apple charged \$79 in the United States to replace a battery at the time (and a similar price outside of the United States), but offered a free battery replacement to this small number of owners of Devices in the "limited serial range."

87. Within days of Apple's November 2016 announcement, it became clear that a far greater number of Devices were affected than Apple was letting on. Various media investigations revealed that the "bug" extended beyond the originally-identified iPhone 6s devices.

88. Then, 2017 arrived, and Apple installed software updates on the Devices to gather additional diagnostic data in early January 2017. Based in part on that diagnostic data, on January 23, 2017, Apple released a software update, known as iOS 10.2.1. Apple told consumers that the

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

B.

update was to fix "bugs" or improve "security" on the Devices and a month later, Apple publicly disclosed that the software update had largely addressed the shutdown problem.

89. Missing from these statements to consumers or to the tech press was the true purpose of the software update—to conceal a much larger defect than the public knew—namely, there was a mismatch between the Devices' hardware, including their processing chips and rechargeable lithium-ion batteries, and the ever-increasing demands placed on the Devices via Apple's constantly-updating iOS software platform. This mismatch is referred to as the "Defect(s)." And the software update did not "fix" or "cure" the Defect—it instead concealed it by secretly throttling the Devices' performance to reduce the number of unexpected shutdowns to a more manageable volume. Apple partially "cured" one defect by making another defect more aggressive accomplished by violating federal computer fraud laws and a host of various state laws. For eleven months, the secret remained uncovered as Apple continued to hide the whole truth.

90. Apple's throttling did not stop at iOS 10.2.1. On December 2, 2017, another set of throttling code was inserted in iOS 11.2^2 , but Apple again told consumers the update was primarily to fix "bugs" and provide "improvements." Apple did not reveal the Defects.

91. Only after independent research was published online in mid-December 2017, demonstrating the marked degradation of performance in a large sampling of the Devices after installation of the Updates, did Apple attempt to start to come clean. On December 20, 2017, Apple tacitly admitted that the Updates intentionally slowed the Devices (the "December 20 Admission") stating, in relevant part:

25 26

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

² As used herein, the term "Updates" refers, unless otherwise stated, to iOS 10.2.1 and iOS 11.2. All of the iOS updates, however, issued by Apple prior to iOS 11.3 are part of Apple's misconduct and subsequent cover-up. iOS 12.2 beta was released June 25, 2018. Each of these later versions of iOS after iOS 11.2 are nothing more than Apple's attempt to further conceal the extent of its aberrant behavior.

Case 5:18-cv-03989 Document 1 Filed 07/02/18 Page 13 of 38

Our goal is to deliver the best experience for customers, which includes overall performance and prolonging the life of their devices. Lithium—ion batteries become less capable of supplying peak current demands when in cold conditions, have a low battery charge or as they age over time, which can result in the device unexpectedly shutting down to protect its electronic components.

Last year we released a feature for iPhone 6, iPhone 6s and iPhone SE to *smooth out* the instantaneous peaks only when needed to prevent the device from unexpectedly shutting down during these conditions. We've now extended that feature to iPhone 7, with iOS 11.2, and plan to add support for other products in the future.³

92. The December 20 Admission, however, contained the further misrepresentation that the code was designed to "*smooth out*" allegedly "[unexpected] instantaneous peaks" in performance. A downpour of media reports ensued, several of which used the more appropriate term—"throttle"—to define this "smooth[ing]" feature that Apple inserted into the code for the iOS 10.2.1 update.

93. The batteries have a limited number of charge and discharge cycles, and they degrade over time. The batteries give off current which is used to drive the processor (*i.e.* the chips) in each of the Devices to perform tasks (*i.e.* play video, open applications, transmit data, etc). The throttling via the Updates permitted Apple to have the batteries draw less current to run the Devices for the same amount of time as a new battery, but the trade-off was that the processing speed was slowed down. This is akin to a driver going slower to get better gas mileage. Over time, the "gas tank" shrinks further as new and more demanding iOS updates are added, meaning even slower performance as the processor originally provided with the Devices struggle—not only due to their own limitations—but the limitations of the batteries to provide enough power current to keep pace with the new demands (the "Battery Issues"). Given the constant iOS upgrades requiring the processors in Apple's Devices to perform more and more tasks, the batteries were inadequate for the Devices from day one, hence the Defects.

³ Shara Tibiken, "Apple admits slowing older iPhones, says it's to prevent battery issues," *C/Net* (Dec. 20, 2017) (available online at <u>https://www.cnet.com/news/apple-slows-down-older-iphone-battery-issues/#ftag=CAD-09-10aai5b)</u> (last visited July 1, 2018).

Case 5:18-cv-03989 Document 1 Filed 07/02/18 Page 14 of 38

94. Worse yet, due to the Defects and Battery Issues, consumers would logically be required to continually recharge their Devices to attempt to refill the "gas tank" with more power. This constant recharging only feeds the further degradation of the battery.⁴ While Plaintiffs and the class need not attribute any motive behind Apple's intentional degradation of the Devices, it is evident that Apple continued to do so for the simple reason most frauds are committed: money. Although technically complex in part, the scheme was logical and simple: The Devices were designed defectively, and Apple released software updates to conceal the Defects, all the while exacerbating the effects of the Defects—principally decreased performance—so that Device users had no choice but to purchase new batteries or upgrade their Devices, resulting in additional payments to Apple and a sustained (albeit forced) customer base.

95. Further highlighting Apple's dependence on the "success" of its defective products, the Devices represented at least 70% of Apple's overall revenue for at least fiscal years 2013 to 2017 (nearly \$800 billion), and to date. Critically, in 2016—just prior to the first of the Updates— Apple was stumbling for the first time in 15 years in iPhone sales, was facing a saturated iPhone market, decreased sales of iPads (and even its Mac product line), the end or phasing out of third party vendor "two-year" service contracts, and increased competition overall.

96. As such, a perfect storm was brewing for Apple, with a host of problems threatening its continued ability to profit in the smartphone and tablet markets. *No time*, and *particularly during 2016 and 2017*, was a good time for Apple to reveal that its Devices were defective. And so, the sly saga progressed.

97. Through this confluence of events, consumers were defrauded into purchasing Devices with Defects and Battery Issues (because Apple never disclosed the problems), new batteries, and even new devices. Apple misrepresented material facts to consumers by representing each new device as faster with longer battery life, all the while omitting that any Defects or Battery

⁴ Ironically, in Apple's U.S. Patent No. 9,912,186, issued March 6, 2018, and discussing charging techniques, it acknowledges that: "Continued use of a lithium-polymer battery over time may also produce swelling in the battery's cells. . . a user of a device may not be aware of the battery's swelling and/or degradation until the swelling results in physical damage to the device." The application for this patent was in process since at least 2011. Issues existed. Because Apple put profits over its consumers, and deliberately misrepresented facts to make more profits, its scheme was willful and wonton, and with reckless disregard for its customers—Plaintiff and the class members.

CHOICE OF LAW

98. By using their Devices or downloading a software update, Device users are presented with the iOS Software License Agreement.⁵ There are separate Software License Agreements for each version of iOS software including: iPhone iOS 3.1, iOS 4.1, iOS 5.0, iOS 5.1, iOS 6.0, iOS 7.0, iOS 8.0, iOS 8.1, iOS 9.0, iOS 9.1, iOS 10, iOS 11, and iOS 11.2. The agreements do not differ in material terms, and provide that California law governs the agreements.⁶

99. To the extent they apply, the iOS Software Licensing Agreements are effective at the point of sale—as soon as the customers turn on their Devices—and are thus part of the benefit of the consumers' bargain. Without the iOS, for which there is a purported licensing agreement, the Devices simply do not work.

100. Apple elected to have California law govern all claims and disputes concerning the common software required to operate all of the Devices at issue in this lawsuit. Accordingly, the application of California law to all of the class members' claims is fair, appropriate, and an election affirmatively made by Apple consistent in its agreements.

101. By using their Devices, consumers are told that they agree to be bound by California law as consumers must run Apple's proprietary iOS to use their Devices.

102. Apple's principal place of business is in California, marketing materials were written and design of the defective Devices occurred in California, and all of the fraudulent, deceptive, and unfair actions emanated from California. California has an interest in ensuring that businesses located within its borders act lawfully.

103. Accordingly, California law should apply to Plaintiffs' claims.⁷

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

⁵ Versions of those agreements for each iOS, incorporated herein by reference, are available at <u>https://www.apple.com/legal/sla/</u> (last visited June 27, 2018).

⁶ California law applies unless the consumer is based in the United Kingdom.

⁷ Plaintiffs do not otherwise waive their ability to bring other claims via amendment.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

104. Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2) and (b)(3), as applicable, and (c)(4), Plaintiffs seek certification of the following class:

All purchasers, owners, users or lessees of the following Apple Devices: the Apple iPhone 5, 5s, 5c, 6, 6s 6 Plus, 6s Plus, SE, 7, 7 Plus, and the Apple iPad, including the Fourth Generation, Mini, Air, Mini 2, Update to Fourth Generation, Air 2, Mini 3, Mini 4, Pro, and 9.7-Inch Pro, Fifth Generation, 10.5-Inch Pro, 12.9-Inch Pro, and Sixth Generation.⁸

105. Numerosity: Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a)(1). The members of the class are so numerous and geographically dispersed that individual joinder of all class members is impracticable. Plaintiffs are informed and believe—based upon the publicly-available information discussed herein—that there are millions of class members, making joinder impracticable. Those individuals' identities are available through Apple's records, and class members may be notified of the pendency of this action by recognized, Court-approved notice dissemination methods.

106. **Commonality and Predominance: Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 23(a)(2) and 23(b)(3)**. Apple has acted with respect to Plaintiffs and the other members of the proposed class in a manner generally applicable to each of them. There is a well-defined community of interest in the questions of law and fact involved, which affect all class members. The questions of law and fact common to the class predominate over the questions that may affect individual class members, including the following:

- a. Whether Apple designed, manufactured, advertised, promoted, and sold Devices that it knew contained Defects or Battery Issues, and withheld that information from consumers or purposefully misrepresented the Devices to consumers;
- b. Whether Apple designed updated iOS to address Defects or Battery Issues in a manner that slowed the performance of those Devices;
- c. Whether and to what extent Apple disclosed the effect of iOS Updates to Device
- 28 ⁸ Because Apple affirmatively concealed its fraud, equitable tolling principles apply so as to toll any applicable statute of limitations period.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

performance;

	-
d.	Whether Apple used the iOS modification to profit from Plaintiffs and the other
	class members by inducing them to buy new replacements for their Devices;
e.	Whether Apple is subject to liability for fraudulently concealing material facts from
	Plaintiffs and the other class members;
f.	whether Apple is subject to liability for violating the Consumers Legal Remedies
	Act ("CLRA"), Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1750, et seq.;
f.	Whether Apple's conduct has violated the Unfair Competition Law ("UCL"), Cal.
	Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq.;
g.	Whether Apple's conduct has violated the Consumer Fraud and Abuse Act, 18
	U.S.C. § 1030, et seq.;
h.	Whether Apple's conduct has violated Cal. Penal Code § 502;
i.	Whether Apple has been unjustly enriched as a result of its fraudulent conduct, such
	that it would be inequitable for Apple to retain the benefits conferred upon it by
	Plaintiffs and the other class members;
j.	Whether compensatory or consequential damages should be awarded to Plaintiffs
	and the other class members;
k.	Whether punitive damages should be awarded to Plaintiffs and the other class
	members;
1.	Whether restitution should be awarded to Plaintiffs and the other class members; and
m.	Whether other, additional relief is appropriate, and what that relief should be.
107.	Typicality: Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a)(3). Plaintiffs' claims are
typical of othe	er class members' claims because Plaintiffs and class members were subjected to the
same allegedl	y unlawful conduct and damaged in the same way.
108.	Adequacy of Representation: Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a)(4).
Plaintiffs are	adequate class representatives because their interests do not conflict with the interests
of class memb	pers who they seek to represent, Plaintiffs have retained counsel competent and

experienced in complex class action litigation, and Plaintiffs intend to prosecute this action vigorously. The class members' interests will be fairly and adequately protected by Plaintiffs and their counsel.

109. **Declaratory and Injunctive Relief: Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(b)(2)**. The prosecution of separate actions by individual class members would create a risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual class members that would establish incompatible standards of conduct for Apple. Such individual actions would create a risk of adjudications that would be dispositive of the interests of other class members and impair their interests. Apple has acted and/or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the class, making final injunctive relief or corresponding declaratory relief appropriate.

110. Injunctive relief is particularly necessary in this case because: (1) Plaintiffs desire to purchase products with the same qualities and attributes as Apple advertised the Devices to have; (2) if Apple actually manufactured Devices with the qualities and attributes as deceptively represented, Plaintiffs would purchase those Devices; (3) but Plaintiffs do not have the ability to determine whether Apple's representations are true concerning the Devices if they purchase such Devices in the future. Indeed, Plaintiffs, and putative class members, in the future will likely want to purchase Devices manufactured by Apple; however, they expect that Apple will not misrepresent or conceal defects in those Devices (or subsequently-released iPhones and iPads), and will provide clear explanations regarding the Updates to those Devices (without concealing or misrepresenting what the Updates will do).

111. Superiority: Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(b)(3). A class action is superior to any other available means for the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy, and no unusual difficulties are likely to be encountered in the management of this class action. The damages or other financial detriment suffered by Plaintiffs and class members are relatively small compared to the burden and expense that would be required to individually litigate their claims against Apple, so it would be impracticable for class members to individually seek redress for Apple's wrongful conduct. Even if class members could afford litigation, the court system could not. Individualized litigation creates a potential for inconsistent or contradictory judgments and increases the delay and expense to all parties and the court system. By contrast, the class action device presents far fewer management difficulties and provides the benefits of single adjudication, economies of scale, and comprehensive supervision by a single court.

TOLLING OF APPLICABLE LIMITATIONS PERIODS

112. Tolling principles—such as discovery rule tolling, fraudulent concealment tolling, and estoppel—prevent Apple from asserting any statute of limitations defense because of its concealment of Plaintiffs' ability to recognize and bring claims as described herein.

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

COUNT 1

VIOLATIONS OF THE COMPUTER FRAUD AND ABUSE ACT,

18 U.S.C. § 1030, et seq.

113. The Plaintiffs identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein.

114. Apple caused Plaintiff and class members to download and install iOS Updates to their Devices without informing its customers that the iOS Updates contained code that would diminish Device performance, or throttle performance, in order to compensate for undisclosed Defects in those Devices. Accordingly, Plaintiff and class members did not give permission for Apple to install iOS Updates onto their Devices—nor could they—as Apple did not provide material information to Plaintiff and class members regarding the updates.

115. Apple violated 18 U.S.C. § 1030(a) by knowingly causing the transmission of iOS software Updates to Plaintiff and class members' devices to access, collect, and transmit information to Devices, which are protected computers as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 1030(e)(2)(B) because they are used in interstate commerce and/or communication. By transmitting information to class members' Devices, Apple intentionally caused damage without authorization to class members' devices by impairing the ability of those Devices to operate as warranted, represented, and advertised.

116. Apple violated 18 U.S.C. § 1030(a)(5)(A)(iii) by intentionally accessing Plaintiff and class members' Devices—protected computers—without authorization, and as a result, caused damage to Plaintiff and class members' Devices by impairing the integrity of those Devices.

117. Apple's conduct has caused loss to Plaintiff and class members in real, economic damages. Plaintiff and class members have additionally suffered loss by reason of these violations, in terms of added expense in operating their Devices, which have been throttled, or in the purchase of new, unthrottled Devices.

118. Unless Apple is restrained and enjoined, Apple will continue to commit such acts. Plaintiff's remedy at law is thus inadequate to compensate for these inflicted and threatened injuries, entitling Plaintiff to remedies including injunctive relief as provided by § 1030(g).

COUNT 2

VIOLATIONS OF THE CONSUMER LEGAL REMEDIES ACT,

Cal. Civ. Code § 1750, et seq.

119. The Plaintiffs identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein.

120. The Consumers Legal Remedies Act, Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1750, *et seq.* ("CLRA"), is a comprehensive statutory scheme that is to be liberally construed to protect consumers against unfair and deceptive business practices in connection with the conduct of businesses providing goods, property or services to consumers primarily for personal, family, or household use.

121. In accordance with the liberal application and construction of the CLRA, application of the CLRA to all class members is appropriate, given that Apple's conduct as described herein originated from California, the Devices and iOS code were designed and originated in California, and Apple's uniform iOS Software License Agreement provides that California law shall apply.

122. Apple's uniform iOS Software License Agreement governs the reach of the class's claims because Apple's violations of the CLRA were caused, in part, by the installation of certain

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Case 5:18-cv-03989 Document 1 Filed 07/02/18 Page 21 of 38

operating software that throttled Device performance in order to further conceal the Defects and Battery Issues in Apple's Devices. 123. Apple is a "person" as defined by Civil Code §§ 1761(c) and 1770, and has provided "services" as defined by Civil Code §§ 1761(b) and 1770.

124. Plaintiff and the class members are "consumers" as defined by Civil Code§§ 1761(d) and 1770, and have engaged in a "transaction" as defined by Civil Code §§ 1761(e) and1770.

125. Apple's acts and practices were intended to and did result in the sales of products and services to Plaintiff and the class members in violation of Civil Code § 1770, including:

a. Representing that goods or services have characteristics that they do not have;

- Representing that goods or services are of a particular standard, quality, or grade when they were not;
- c. Advertising goods or services with intent not to sell them as advertised; and
- d. Representing that the subject of a transaction has been supplied in accordance with a previous representation when it has not.

126. Apple's representations and omissions were material because they were likely to deceive reasonable consumers.

127. Had Apple disclosed to Plaintiffs and class members that it misrepresented the Devices and operating software, omitted material information regarding the Defects and Battery Issues, omitted material information regarding the operating software, and was otherwise engaged in common business practices that ultimately hurt consumers, Apple would have been unable to continue in business and it would have been forced to disclose the uniform defects in its Devices. Instead, Apple represented that its Devices were continually improving in speed and battery life and performed better than other devices on the market. Plaintiff and the class members acted reasonably in relying on Apple's misrepresentations and omissions, the truth of which they could not have discovered.

28

27

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

128. As a direct and proximate result of Apple's violations of California Civil Code § 1770, Plaintiff and class members have suffered and will continue to suffer injury, ascertainable losses of money or property, and monetary and non-monetary damages, including from not receiving the benefit of their bargain in purchasing the Devices, and increased time and expense in dealing with Device performance issues.

129. Apple has already received notice of the class members' intent to seek damages in compliance with California Civil Code § 1782(a).

130. Plaintiffs seek all monetary and non-monetary relief allowed by law, including damages, an order enjoining the acts and practices described above, attorneys' fees, and costs under the CLRA.

COUNT 3

VIOLATIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA UNFAIR COMPETITION LAW,

Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200, et seq.

131. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein.

132. In accordance with the liberal application and construction of the UCL, application of the UCL to all class members is appropriate, given that Apple's conduct as described herein originated from California, the Devices and iOS code were designed and originated in California, and Apple's uniform iOS Software License Agreement provides that California law shall apply.

133. Apple's uniform iOS Software License Agreement governs the reach of the class's claims because Apple's violations of the UCL were caused, in part, by the installation of certain operating software that throttled Device performance in order to further conceal the Defects and Battery Issues in Apple's Devices.

134. Apple is a "person" as defined by Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §17201.

135. Apple violated Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq. ("UCL") by engaging in unlawful, unfair, and deceptive business acts and practices.

1		
1 2	136.	Apple's "unfair" acts and practices include:
3	a.	Knowingly designing, developing, manufacturing, advertising, and selling Devices
4		with significant defects that result in the Devices not operating as intended,
5		represented, or advertised under normal usage;
	b.	Developing software Updates that merely hide the aforementioned Defects and
6 7		Battery Issues by throttling Device performance, resulting in the Devices operating
8		at slower speeds than intended, represented, or advertised under normal usage;
o 9	с.	Concealing material information from consumers regarding its Devices, the Battery
		Issues, and Defects so that consumers were unable to make informed choices when
10		purchasing the Devices;
11	d.	Concealing material information from consumers regarding the Updates to operating
12		software, so that consumers would not, nor could they, know that the Updates
13		throttled their Devices; and
14 15	e.	Using uniform, deceptive business practices such as throttling software to slow down
		Devices, requiring consumers to spend additional money on replacement batteries or
16 17		Devices as a result of the Defects and Battery Issues.
17	137.	Apple has engaged in "unlawful" business practices by violating multiple laws,
18 19	including the	CLRA, Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1780, et seq., and California common law.
20	138.	Apple's unlawful, unfair, and deceptive acts and practices include:
20 21	a.	Knowingly designing, developing, manufacturing, advertising, and selling Devices
21		with significant defects that result in the Devices not operating as intended,
22		represented, or advertised under normal usage;
23 24	b.	Developing software Updates that merely hide the aforementioned Defects and
24 25		Battery Issues by throttling Device performance, resulting in the Devices operating
23 26		at slower speeds than intended, represented, or advertised under normal usage;
20 27	с.	Concealing material information from consumers regarding its Devices, the Battery
27		Issues, and Defects so that consumers were unable to make informed choices when
20		
	CLASS ACT	ION COMPLAINT 23

purchasing the Devices;

- d. Concealing material information from consumers regarding the Updates to operating software, so that consumers would not, nor could they, know that the Updates throttled their Devices; and
- e. Using uniform, deceptive business practices such as throttling software to slow down Devices, requiring consumers to spend additional money on replacement batteries or Devices as a result of the Defects and Battery Issues.

139. Apple violated § 17200's prohibition against engaging in unlawful acts and practices by engaging in false and misleading advertising and by omitting material facts from purchasers of its Devices. As alleged more fully herein, apple's marketing and sale of Devices, and more specifically its failure to inform customers of the negative and throttling impact iOS Updates would have on those Devices, violated Cal. Civ. Code § 1750, *et seq.*, common law, and other statutory violations as alleged herein. Plaintiff reserves the right to allege other violations of the law, which constitute other unlawful business acts and practices. Apple's conduct is ongoing and continues to this date.

140. Apple violated § 17200's prohibition against unfair conduct by failing to inform its customers about the Defects and Battery Issues in the Devices; engaging in a pattern or practice of concealing those facts and urging its customers to install regular updates to the iOS software to throttle those devices—thereby depriving those Device owners of the performance of those devices that existed at the time of purchase. This conduct is substantially injurious to consumers, offends public policy, is immoral, unethical, oppressive, and unscrupulous as the gravity of the conduct—crippling Devices that are, in many instances, consumers' lifelines—outweighs any alleged benefit. Specifically, the utility gained by "upgrading" the iOS software of the Devices was outweighed by the diminishment of the Device functionality. Apple engaged in this conduct at the expense of its customers' rights when other, lawful alternatives were available (such as providing customers with full information about the Devices and iOS software, or offering batteries to customers who experienced Battery Issues).

141. Apple engaged in this conduct to gain an unfair commercial advantage over its competitors, seeking to avoid public knowledge of the Battery Issues and Defects in its Devices to avoid damage to its sales or reputation. It withheld critical and material information from Plaintiff and class members, competitors, and the marketplace, all to its unfair competitive advantage.

142. Apple's business practices, as alleged herein, constitute fraudulent conduct because they were likely to deceive, and did deceive, class members into purchasing Devices, and upgrading those Devices with iOS Updates, when those Devices were defective and the Updates would only throttle the Devices instead of fixing them.

143. Apple's representations and omissions—all which emanated from California—were material because they were likely to deceive reasonable consumers.

144. California law prohibits unauthorized computer access and fraud pursuant to Cal.Penal Code § 502.

145. As a result of Apple's installation of iOS Upgrades on Plaintiff's and class members' devices, Apple knowingly accessed and without permission altered, damaged, deleted, destroyed, and otherwise used any data stored on Plaintiff's and class members' devices.

146. Plaintiff and class members did not know that Apple's iOS Update would throttle Device performance; accordingly, Apple did not have permission to install iOS Updates on class members' Devices.

147. Apple accessed and without permission altered and used data on class members' Devices to execute a scheme or artifice to defraud the class members' by, among other things, maintaining market share, convincing Plaintiff and class members to purchase new Devices, and to otherwise ensure that Plaintiff and class members would not discover Apple's underlying fraud regarding its omissions and misrepresentations regarding the Devices. As a result, Apple violated Cal. Penal Code § 502.

148. The iOS Updates led to the deterioration of the Devices and functionality of the Devices as a whole, driving customers to purchase new Devices who would not have outlaid the

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

additional costs had they known the truth, and Apple not concealed the Device Defects and Battery Issues.

149. As a direct and proximate result of Apple's unfair, unlawful, and fraudulent acts and practices, Plaintiff and class members were injured and lost money or property, including from not receiving the benefit of their bargain in purchasing the Devices, and increased time and expense in dealing with Device performance issues.

150. Apple acted intentionally, knowingly, and maliciously to violate California's Unfair Competition Law, and recklessly disregarded Plaintiff and class members' rights. Apple's knowledge of the Devices' performance issues, and release of software to throttle phone performance, put it on notice that the Devices were not as it advertised.

151. Plaintiff and class members seek all monetary and non-monetary relief allowed by law, including restitution of all profits stemming from Apple's unfair, unlawful, and fraudulent business practices; declaratory relief; reasonable attorneys' fees and costs under California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5; injunctive relief; and other appropriate equitable relief.

COUNT 4

VIOLATIONS OF CALIFORNIA'S FALSE AND MISLEADING

ADVERTISING LAW,

Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17500, et seq.

152. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein.

153. Apple's acts and practices, as described herein, have deceived and/or are likely to continue to deceive class members and the public. As described in Counts I and II above, and throughout this Complaint, Apple misrepresented the Devices, concealed the Devices' defects and Battery Issues, concealed the throttling capabilities of its updated operational software, and misrepresented the purpose of iOS Updates.

154. By its actions, Apple disseminated uniform advertising regarding iOS Updates based out of California, and governed by California law. The advertising was, by its very nature, unfair, deceptive, untrue, and misleading within the meaning of Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17500, *et seq*. Such advertisements were intended to and likely did deceive the consuming public for the reasons detailed herein.

155. The above-described false, misleading, and deceptive advertising Apple disseminated continues to have a likelihood to deceive in that Apple failed to disclose the true nature of the iOS Updates and the Devices. Apple failed to instigate a public information campaign to alert consumers of the Defects and Battery Issues and the iOS Updates. Instead, Apple continued to misrepresent the true nature of the iOS Updates and the Devices, continuing to deceive consumers.

156. Apple continued to misrepresent to consumers that its Devices were fast and had long battery lives, however, the Devices contained Defects and Battery Issues. Had Apple disclosed those issues, rather than falsely advertising the Devices' properties, consumers would have not purchased or paid significantly less for the Devices.

157. In making and disseminating the statements alleged herein, Apple knew, or should have known, its advertisements were untrue and misleading in violation of California law. Plaintiff and other class members based their purchasing decisions on Apple's omitted material facts. The revenues to Apple attributable to products sold in those false and misleading advertisements amount to hundreds of millions of dollars. Plaintiff and class members were injured in fact and lost money and property as a result.

158. The misrepresentations and non-disclosures by Apple of the material facts described and detailed herein constitute false and misleading advertising and, therefore, constitute violations of Cal. Bus. & Prof Code § 17500, *et seq*.

As a result of Apple's wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and the class members lost money. Plaintiff and the class members are therefore entitled to restitution as appropriate for this cause of action.

COUNT 5

CALIFORNIA COMPUTER DATA ACCESS AND FRAUD ACT, Cal. Penal Code § 502, *et seq*.

159. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein.

160. In pushing Updates to its iOS to unsuspecting users of its Devices, Apple violated the California Penal Code, Computer Data Access and Fraud Act, Cal. Penal Code § 502, *et seq.*

161. When Apple provided iOS Updates to consumers—Plaintiffs and class members they did not know, nor could they in the exercise of reasonable diligence know, that the software Updates contained code that would throttle their Devices, designed solely to further conceal the Defects and Battery Issues in those Devices.

162. Because consumers did not know that the iOS Updates contained such throttling code, they did not give Apple permission to access their Devices to alter the data or computer systems on those Devices.

163. Apple provided the iOS Updates to consumers as part of a scheme or artifice to defraud and deceive, because it provided the Updates to consumers *instead of* informing them of the Defects and Battery Issues inherent on their Devices. Indeed, Apple could have informed consumers that the Battery Issues they were having with their Devices could be resolved via a battery replacement. Apple instead chose concealment, and throttling Devices via the installation of software that would do so.

164. Apple offered iOS Updates to consumers to throttle their Devices as a means to encourage consumers to purchase new devices, wrongfully obtaining money from those consumers.

165. By offering the iOS Updates to consumers, instead of revealing the truth, Apple disrupted or caused the disruption of consumer services when it improperly and unlawfully throttled users and class members' Devices. Plaintiffs and class members did not consent to having their

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Devices throttled, and had they known that the iOS Updates would throttle their Devices, they would not have installed the iOS Updates.

166. As a result of Apple's unlawful conduct, Plaintiffs and class members were damaged in an amount to be determined at trial.

COUNT 6

TRESPASS TO CHATTELS

167. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein.

168. California common law prohibits the intentional intermeddling with personal property in the possession of another, without consent, that results in either a) the deprivation of the use of that personal property; or b) the impairment of the condition, quality, or usefulness of the property.

169. Apple impaired the condition, quality, and usefulness of Plaintiff and class members' Devices, or parts of them, without their knowledge or consent. Such acts constituted an intentional interference with the use and enjoyment of the Devices.

170. Apple acted intentionally, because it knew that Plaintiff and class members were downloading computer software onto their Devices that reduced the performance of the Devices. Plaintiff and other class members only consented to the installation of iOS Updates that would improve performance, not diminish performance.

171. Apple engaged in deception to gain access to the Devices and install new computer software or iOS Updates.

172. Plaintiff and class members suffered actual damages as a result of Apple's actions in an amount to be determined at trial.

173. Furthermore, Plaintiff seeks punitive damages because Apple's trespass was committed from wanton or malicious motives, or reckless disregard of the rights of Plaintiff and the class, for the purpose of concealing the Defect.

COUNT 7

FRAUD

174. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein.

175. At the time Plaintiff and class members purchased their Devices, Apple did not disclose, but instead concealed and misrepresented, the Battery Issues and Defects in the Devices as discussed herein.

176. Further, Apple represented that Updates to its iOS were designed to improve Device performance, and otherwise resolve issues that could have a negative impact on Plaintiffs' and class members' device experiences.

177. Apple omitted that the Updates to its iOS were actually designed to further conceal the Defects and Battery Issues in the Devices. Further, Apple omitted and affirmatively misrepresented the true reason for the Updates for its Devices—that such Updates were designed to downgrade Device speed and processing capabilities in order to disguise fundamental Device Defects and Battery Issues.

178. Apple knew, or should have known, that these Updates were falsely portrayed to the consumer public.

179. Apple also knew that its omissions and misrepresentations regarding the Updates and Devices were material, and that a reasonable consumer would rely upon Apple's representations (and corresponding omissions) in making purchasing decisions.

180. Apple, by its clear admissions in December 2017, in fact intended to deceive Plaintiff and class members.

181. Plaintiff and class members did not know—nor could they have known through reasonable diligence—about the Defects and Battery Issues in the Devices, nor could they have known about what the Upgrades were designed to really do.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

182. Plaintiff and class members would have been reasonable in relying on Apple's misrepresentations (and corresponding omissions) in making their purchasing decisions and downloading Updates.

183. Plaintiff and class members had a right to rely upon Apple's representations (and corresponding omissions) as Apple maintained a monopolistic control over what the Updates to the iOS included, and what information was available regarding the Defects and Battery Issues in the Devices, when Updates were provided to consumers, how those Updates were promoted to consumers, and why consumers should update their iOS.

184. Plaintiff and class members sustained damages as a result of their reliance on Apple's omissions and misrepresentations, thus causing Plaintiff and class members to sustain actual losses and damages in a sum to be determined at trial, including punitive damages.

COUNT 8

BREACH OF CONTRACT

185. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein.

186. Apple solicited and invited Plaintiffs and class members to buy new Devices.Plaintiff and class members accepted Apple's offers and bought Devices from Apple.

187. Plaintiff and class members formed contracts with Apple at the time they purchased their Apple Devices. The terms of the contracts include promises and affirmations made by Apple on its website and through marketing that the Devices would perform as advertised, even after updating the latest iOS.

188. Further, Plaintiff and class members entered into implied contracts with Apple wherein Apple agreed not to purposefully interfere with, negatively affect, or otherwise harm Plaintiff's and class members' Devices or usage of the Devices.

 10.1 "Equates to the FOS are gorefree by an agreement has provides that cannot has a shall govern the agreement between Plaintiff and class members on one hand, and Apple on the other. 190. Plaintiff reasonably relied upon representations that the Devices would perform as advertised and warranted, and class members would be reasonable in relying upon those same representations. 191. Plaintiff and class members performed their obligations under their contracts with Apple. 192. Apple's Devices did not perform as advertised or promised. Accordingly, Apple breached its contract with customers. 193. As a result of Apple's breach, Plaintiff and class members have been damaged in an amount equal to the purchase price of the Devices. 194. All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations, including notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of the download of the iOS Updates. 	189.	Updates to the iOS are governed by an agreement that provides that California law
other. 190. Plaintiff reasonably relied upon representations that the Devices would perform as advertised and warranted, and class members would be reasonable in relying upon those same representations. 191. Plaintiff and class members performed their obligations under their contracts with Apple. 192. Apple's Devices did not perform as advertised or promised. Accordingly, Apple breached its contract with customers. 193. As a result of Apple's breach, Plaintiff and class members have been damaged in an amount equal to the purchase price of the Devices. 194. All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations, including notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of		
 190. Plaintiff reasonably relied upon representations that the Devices would perform as advertised and warranted, and class members would be reasonable in relying upon those same representations. 191. Plaintiff and class members performed their obligations under their contracts with Apple. 192. Apple's Devices did not perform as advertised or promised. Accordingly, Apple breached its contract with customers. 193. As a result of Apple's breach, Plaintiff and class members have been damaged in an amount equal to the purchase price of the Devices. 194. All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations, including notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of the users. 	-	the agreement between Flaintin and class members on one hand, and Apple on the
advertised and warranted, and class members would be reasonable in relying upon those same representations. 191. Plaintiff and class members performed their obligations under their contracts with Apple. 192. Apple's Devices did not perform as advertised or promised. Accordingly, Apple breached its contract with customers. 193. As a result of Apple's breach, Plaintiff and class members have been damaged in an amount equal to the purchase price of the Devices. 194. All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations, including notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of		
representations. 191. Plaintiff and class members performed their obligations under their contracts with Apple. 192. Apple's Devices did not perform as advertised or promised. Accordingly, Apple breached its contract with customers. 193. As a result of Apple's breach, Plaintiff and class members have been damaged in an amount equal to the purchase price of the Devices. 194. All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations, including notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of		
 191. Plaintiff and class members performed their obligations under their contracts with Apple. 192. Apple's Devices did not perform as advertised or promised. Accordingly, Apple breached its contract with customers. 193. As a result of Apple's breach, Plaintiff and class members have been damaged in an amount equal to the purchase price of the Devices. 194. All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations, including notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 		
 Apple. 192. Apple's Devices did not perform as advertised or promised. Accordingly, Apple breached its contract with customers. 193. As a result of Apple's breach, Plaintiff and class members have been damaged in an amount equal to the purchase price of the Devices. 194. All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations, including notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 	-	
 192. Apple's Devices did not perform as advertised or promised. Accordingly, Apple breached its contract with customers. 193. As a result of Apple's breach, Plaintiff and class members have been damaged in an amount equal to the purchase price of the Devices. 194. All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations, neluding notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), ndividually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of ts users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 	191.	Plaintiff and class members performed their obligations under their contracts with
 breached its contract with customers. 193. As a result of Apple's breach, Plaintiff and class members have been damaged in an amount equal to the purchase price of the Devices. 194. All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations, neluding notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), ndividually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of ts users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 	Apple.	
 193. As a result of Apple's breach, Plaintiff and class members have been damaged in an amount equal to the purchase price of the Devices. 194. All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations, neluding notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), Individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of ts users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 	192.	Apple's Devices did not perform as advertised or promised. Accordingly, Apple
 amount equal to the purchase price of the Devices. 194. All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations, including notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. <u>COUNT 9</u> BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 	preached its c	contract with customers.
 194. All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations, including notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. <u>COUNT 9</u> BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 	193.	As a result of Apple's breach, Plaintiff and class members have been damaged in an
Including notice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class. COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of	amount equal	to the purchase price of the Devices.
COUNT 9 BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), Individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged inerein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair idealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of ts users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of	194.	All conditions precedent to Apple's liability under its contractual obligations,
BREACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of	including not	ice, have been performed by Plaintiff and the class.
 195. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 		<u>COUNT 9</u>
 individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 	BF	REACH OF THE DUTY OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING
herein. 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of	195.	The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count),
 196. In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 	ndividually a	and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged
 dealing under California law. 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 	herein.	
 197. As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 	196.	In every contract or agreement there is an implied promise of good faith and fair
agreements between Apple and its customers. 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of	dealing under	California law.
 198. In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of 	197.	As described herein, contracts with California choice of law provisions govern the
its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of	agreements b	etween Apple and its customers.
its users. 199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of	198.	In dealings between Apple and its customers, Apple has power affecting the rights of
199. Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of	its users.	
	199.	Apple entered into contracts with the class members and the Plaintiff at the time of
THE OOWIDOAD OF THE TUN UNDATES		
	$CLASS \overline{ACT}$	ION COMPLAINT 32

200. Apple contractually promised in the iOS 10.2.1 update and later Updates to "deliver the best experience for its customers, which includes overall performance and prolonging the life of their devices."

201. Each Plaintiff did all, or substantially all, of the things that the contracts required them to do.

202. The iOS 10.2.1 update throttled Device performance as a means to mitigate issues customers were experiencing with Battery Issues.

203. Apple did not inform customers that, rather than throttling devices by installing iOS10.2.1, those customers could replace the batteries in their Devices.

204. Despite its contractual promises to prolong the life of the devices, Apple instead purposefully took actions to reduce the life of the devices, and purposefully failed to notify customers that replacing the battery would restore performance that had been artificially throttled by iOS 10.2.1 and later updates to iOS.

205. Apple's actions were objectively unreasonable given Apple's promises.

206. Apple's conduct evaded the spirit of the bargain made between Apple and the Plaintiff and class members.

207. As a result of Apple's misconduct and breach of its duty of good faith and fair dealing, Plaintiff and the class suffered damages. Plaintiff and the class members did not receive the benefit of the bargain for which they contracted and for which they paid valuable consideration.

COUNT 10

MONEY HAD AND RECEIVED

208. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein.

209. As a result of the Plaintiff's and class members' purchase of the Devices, Apple obtained money for its own use and benefit, and, as a result of its breaches of contract and breaches

of the good faith and fair dealing implied in those agreements, became indebted to the Plaintiff and class members in an amount to be determined at trial.

210. No part of any of the monies due and owing to Plaintiff and class members has been repaid, although Plaintiff and class members demand repayment, leaving the balance due, owing, and unpaid in an amount to be determined at trial plus interest.

<u>COUNT 11</u>

QUASI-CONTRACT / UNJUST ENRICHMENT

211. The Plaintiff(s) identified above ("Plaintiff," for purposes of this Count), individually and on behalf of the class, repeats and alleges Paragraphs 1-112, as if fully alleged herein. This claim is brought in the alternative to contract-based causes of action.

212. Plaintiff and class members purchased Devices from Apple, and those Devices were not as Apple represented them to be, enticing Plaintiff and the class to purchase the Devices. Had Plaintiff and the class known of the Defects, they would have paid less for their Devices and would not have paid for repairs, service or upgrades caused by the Defect.

213. Accordingly, Plaintiff and class members were damaged, and Apple was unjustly enriched by the purchase price of those Devices.

214. Plaintiff and class members are entitled to damages in the amount Apple was unjustly enriched, to be determined at trial.

215. Furthermore, Apple's conduct was willful, intentionally deceptive, and intended to cause economic injury to Plaintiff and the class. Apple is therefore liable to pay punitive damages under California law.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

216. WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of all other class members, respectfully request that the Court enter an Order:

 a. Declaring that this action is a proper class action, certifying the Class as requested herein, designating Plaintiffs as class Representatives, and appointing Plaintiffs' attorneys as class Counsel;

Case 5:18-cv-03989 Document 1 Filed 07/02/18 Page 35 of 38

b.	Enioining A	pple from continuing the unfair business practices alleged in this
Complaint;	Enjoining 11	ppre nom continuing the unital outsidess practices uneged in this
с.	Ordering Ap	ple to pay actual and statutory damages (including punitive damages) and
		he other class members, as allowable by law;
d.		ple to pay both pre- and post-judgment interest on any amounts awarded;
e.		ple to pay attorneys' fees and costs of suit; and
f.	0 11	h other and further relief as may be just and proper.
	U	JURY DEMAND
Plain	tiffs hereby den	nand a trial by jury on all issues so triable.
		Respectfully submitted,
DATED: Ju	uly 2, 2018	/s/ Joseph W. Cotchett Joseph W. Cotchett
		Joseph W. Cotchett (SBN 36324) Mark C. Molumphy (SBN 168009) COTCHETT, PITRE & MCCARTHY, LLP
		San Francisco Airport Office Center 840 Malcolm Road, Suite 200
		Burlingame, CA 94010 Tel: (650) 697-6000
		Fax: (650) 697-0577 jcotchett@cpmlegal.com
		mmolumphy@cpmlegal.com
DATED: Ju	uly 2, 2018	/s/ Laurence D. King Laurence D. King
		Laurence D. King (SBN 206423) KAPLAN FOX & KILSHEIMER LLP
		350 Sansome Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94104
		Tel: (415) 772-4700 Fax: (415) 772-4707
		lking@kaplanfox.com Counsel for Plaintiffs
	TION COMPLA	AINT 35

Daniel C. Levin LEVIN SEDRAN BERMAN 510 Walnut Street, Suite 500 Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19106-3697 Tel: (877) 882-1011 Fax: (215) 592-4663 *Counsel for Plaintiffs:* Alex Rodriguez, Heidi Valle, Ida Villegas, Brandi S. White, Tamica Gordon, Rifah Alexander, Kenyotta Smith, Judith Thompson, Jhonjulee Ray, Aja Liana Johnson, Mary Jackson, Alvin Davis, Michelle Martino, Kevin Browne, Brinley McGill, Sarah Stone, Darlane M. Saracina, Beckie Erwin, Denise Bakke, Tonya Thompson, Andrew Yashchuk, Drew Victory James Vlahakis SULAIMAN LAW GROUP 2500 South Highland Ave, Suite 200 Lombard, IL 60148 Tel: (312) 313-1613 Counsel for Plaintiffs: Loren Haller, Jonathan David, Laura Gail Diamond, Steven Connolly, Bryan Schell, Aisha Boyd, Irwin Darack, Linda Sauer, Alisha Boykin, Tammy Greenfield, Natasha Bryant, John Farris, Herman Praszkier, Lawrence Pethick, Steven Henry, Timothy Baldwin, Kristin Hansen, Jill Klingman, Barbara Moriello, Thomas Toth, Caren Schmidt, Jacquelyn O'Neill, Jodi Johnson, Henry Becker, Kyle Herman, Quinn Lewis, Hanpeng Chen, Kaixuan Ni, Linda Sonna, Sherri Yelton

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

1 Gayle M. Blatt 2 **CASEY GERRY** 110 Laurel St. 3 San Diego, CA 92101-1486 4 Tel: (619) 238-1811 Fax: (619) 544-9232 5 Counsel for Plaintiffs: 6 Daphne Bowles Rodriguez, Susan Rutan, Megan Mesloh, Stephen Heffner, Brian Macinanti, 7 Georgiana D'Allesandro, Aurelia Flores, Nakul 8 Chandra, Burim Daci, Pedro Espejo, Roman Dubianskii, Heekyung Jo, Youngro Lee, Kushagra 9 Sharma 10 Phong Tran 11 **JOHNSTON FISTEL** 655 West Broadway, Suite 1400 12 San Diego, CA 92101 Tel: (619) 230-0063 13 Fax: (619) 255-1856 14 Counsel for Plaintiffs: 15 Jason Ratner 16 Kathleen Herkenhoff HAEGGOUIST ECK 17 225 Broadway, Suite 2050 San Diego, CA 92101 18 Tel: (619) 342-8000 19 Fax: (619) 342-7878 20 Counsel for Plaintiffs: Brandon Farmer, Patrick DeFellippo 21 Anthony Simon 22 **SIMON LAW FIRM** 23 800 Market St., Suite 1700 St. Louis, MO 63101 24 Tel: (855) 809-7080 25 Counsel for Plaintiff: Eric Tanovan, Charlie Daily 26 27 28 CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 37

	Case 5:18-cv-03989	Document 1	Filed 07/02/18	Page 38 of 38
--	--------------------	------------	----------------	---------------

Stephen Rosenthal									
PODHURST ORSECK SunTrust International Center									
One S.E. 3rd Ave, Suite 2300									
Miami, FL 33131									
Tel: (305) 358-2800									
Counsel for Plaintiffs:									
Christopher Gautreax, Kristopher Kingston, Adam Shapiro, Shiriam Torres									
Matthew George									
KAPLAN FOX KILSHEIMER									
350 Sansome Street									
Suite 400									
San Francisco, CA 94104									
Tel: (415) 772-4700 Fax: (415) 772-4707									
rax. (415) / /2-4/07									
Counsel for Plaintiff:									
Angela Boykin									
David Straite									
KAPLAN FOX									
850 Third Avenue, 14th Floor									
New York, NY 10022									
Tel: (800) 290-1952									
Counsel for Plaintiffs:									
Arisa Wakabayashi, Juliana Caceres									
ATTESTATION PURSUANT TO CIVIL LOCAL RULE 5-1(i)(3)									
I, Mark C. Molumphy, attest that concurrence in the filing of this document has been									
obtained from the other signatory. I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United									
States of America that the foregoing is true and correct.									
Executed this 2nd day of July, 2018, at Burlingame, California.									
/s/ Mark C. Molumphy									
MARK C. MOLUMPHY									
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 38									

JS-CAND 44 (Rev. 06/17) Case 5:18-cv-0398 Count of the paper of the pa

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS ALEX RODRIGU	EZ, ET AL.		DEFENDANT APPLE, INC.,		ifornia	a Corporation		
(b) County of Residence of (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAIN	County of Residence of First Listed Defendant (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY) NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.							
(c) Attorneys (<i>Firm Name</i> , Cotchett, Pitre & McC Burlingame, CA 9401	Address, and Telephone Number) Carthy, LLP, 840 Malcolm Road, 0 (650) 697-6000		Attorneys (If Known	1)				
II. BASIS OF JURIS	SDICTION (Place an "X" in One Box Only)		TIZENSHIP OF P Diversity Cases Only)	RINCI	PAL PA	ARTIES (Place an "X" in and One Box for		laintiff
1 U.S. Government Plaintif	f 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party)	Citize	n of This State	PTF	DEF	Incorporated <i>or</i> Principal Pl of Business In This State	PTF lace 4	
2 U.S. Government Defend		Citizen of Another State		X ²	2	Incorporated and Principal of Business In Another Stat		5
	(Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)	Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country		3	3	Foreign Nation	6	6
IV. NATURE OF S	UIT (Place an "X" in One Box Only)							
CONTRACT	TORTS		FORFEITURE/PEN	ALTY	B	ANKRUPTCY	OTHER STA	ATUTES
110 Insurance	PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL	IN.IURY	625 Drug Related Sei	zure of	422 Ap	peal 28 USC § 158 3'	75 False Claii	ms Act

110 msurance	PERSONAL INJURY	PERSONAL INJURY	025 Drug Kelated Seizure of	422 Appear 28 03C § 138	575 Parse Claims Act
120 Marine	310 Airplane	365 Personal Injury – Product	Property 21 USC § 881	423 Withdrawal 28 USC 8 157	376 Qui Tam (31 USC § 3729(a))
		,			
 130 Miller Act 130 Miller Act 140 Negotiable Instrument 150 Recovery of Overpayment Of Veteran's Benefits 151 Medicare Act 152 Recovery of Defaulted Student Loans (Excludes Veterans) 153 Recovery of Overpayment of Veteran's Benefits 160 Stockholders' Suits 190 Other Contract 195 Contract Product Liability 196 Franchise REAL PROPERTY 210 Land Condemnation	 315 Airplane Product Liability 320 Assault, Libel & Slander 330 Federal Employers' Liability 340 Marine 345 Marine Product Liability 350 Motor Vehicle 	 365 Personal Injury – Product Liability 367 Health Care/ Pharmaceutical Personal Injury Product Liability 368 Asbestos Personal Injury Product Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY 370 Other Fraud 371 Truth in Lending 380 Other Personal Property Damage 385 Property Damage Product Liability PRISONER PETITIONS HABEAS CORPUS 463 Alien Detainee 510 Motions to Vacate Sentence 	690 Other LABOR 710 Fair Labor Standards Act 720 Labor/Management Relations 740 Railway Labor Act 751 Family and Medical Leave Act 790 Other Labor Litigation 791 Employee Retirement Income Security Act IMMIGRATION 462 Naturalization Application 465 Other Immigration Actions	 § 157 PROPERTY RIGHTS 820 Copyrights 830 Patent 835 Patent—Abbreviated New Drug Application 840 Trademark SOCIAL SECURITY 861 HIA (1395ff) 862 Black Lung (923) 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) 864 SSID Title XVI 865 RSI (405(g)) FEDERAL TAX SUITS 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff or Defendant) 	 § 3729(a)) 400 State Reapportionment 410 Antitrust 430 Banks and Banking 450 Commerce 460 Deportation 470 Racketeer Influenced & Corrupt Organizations 480 Consumer Credit 490 Cable/Sat TV 850 Securities/Commodities/ Exchange 890 Other Statutory Actions 891 Agricultural Acts 895 Freedom of Information Act 896 Arbitration
220 Foreclosure 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 240 Torts to Land 245 Tort Product Liability 290 All Other Real Property V. ORIGIN (<i>Place an</i> X 1 Original Proceeding 2	Accommodations 445 Amer. w/Disabilities- Employment 446 Amer. w/Disabilities-Other 448 Education * "X" in One Box Only) Removed from 3 1	530 General 535 Death Penalty OTHER 540 Mandamus & Other 550 Civil Rights 555 Prison Condition 560 Civil Detainee– Conditions of Confinement	ated or 5 Transferred from ned Another District		 899 Administrative Procedure Act/Review or Appeal of Agency Decision 950 Constitutionality of State Statutes 8 Multidistrict
ACTION 18 Bri	U.S.C. Section 1030, et seq. and 2 ief description of cause: ause of Action for Fraud	8 U.S.C. Section 1332(d)(2)-Diver	te jurisdictional statutes unless di ^{sity} fair Competition, and Unj		
VII. REQUESTED I COMPLAINT:	UNDER RULE 23, Fed		AND \$	CHECK YES only if dem JURY DEMAND:	anded in complaint: ★ Yes No
VIII. RELATED CAS IF ANY (See instru	JUDGE FA	dward J. Davila	DOCKET NUMBER	18-md-2827-EJD	
IX. DIVISIONAL A (Place an "X" in One Box O	SSIGNMENT (Civil L only) SAN FRA	ocal Rule 3-2) ANCISCO/OAKLAND	× SAN JOSI	E EUREKA	-MCKINLEYVILLE
DATE 07/02/2018	SIGNAT Save As	URE OF ATTORNEY	OF RECORD /s/ M	Iark C. Molumphy	Reset

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS-CAND 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet. The JS-CAND 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved in its original form by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the Clerk of Court to initiate the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

- **I.** a) **Plaintiffs-Defendants.** Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and then the official, giving both name and title.
- b) County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)
- c) Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting in this section "(see attachment)."
- **II. Jurisdiction.** The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 8(a), which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X" in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
 - (1) United States plaintiff. Jurisdiction based on 28 USC §§ 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
 - (2) <u>United States defendant</u>. When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
 - (3) <u>Federal question</u>. This refers to suits under 28 USC § 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
 - (4) <u>Diversity of citizenship</u>. This refers to suits under 28 USC § 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity cases.)
- **III. Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties.** This section of the JS-CAND 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this section for each principal party.
- **IV.** Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If the nature of suit cannot be determined, be sure the cause of action, in Section VI below, is sufficient to enable the deputy clerk or the statistical clerk(s) in the Administrative Office to determine the nature of suit. If the cause fits more than one nature of suit, select the most definitive.
- V. Origin. Place an "X" in one of the six boxes.
 - (1) Original Proceedings. Cases originating in the United States district courts.
 - (2) <u>Removed from State Court</u>. Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 USC § 1441. When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
 - (3) <u>Remanded from Appellate Court</u>. Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing date.
 - (4) <u>Reinstated or Reopened</u>. Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
 - (5) <u>Transferred from Another District</u>. For cases transferred under Title 28 USC § 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or multidistrict litigation transfers.
 - (6) <u>Multidistrict Litigation Transfer</u>. Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 USC § 1407. When this box is checked, do not check (5) above.
 - (8) <u>Multidistrict Litigation Direct File</u>. Check this box when a multidistrict litigation case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.

Please note that there is no Origin Code 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to changes in statute.

- VI. Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC § 553. <u>Brief Description</u>: Unauthorized reception of cable service.
- VII. Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23.

Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.

Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

- VIII. Related Cases. This section of the JS-CAND 44 is used to identify related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.
- **IX.** Divisional Assignment. If the Nature of Suit is under Property Rights or Prisoner Petitions or the matter is a Securities Class Action, leave this section blank. For all other cases, identify the divisional venue according to Civil Local Rule 3-2: "the county in which a substantial part of the events or omissions which give rise to the claim occurred or in which a substantial part of the property that is the subject of the action is situated."

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.